1949

Kennecott Copper Corporation v. State Tax Commission : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Here is presented the single question of whether certain federal subsidies paid to appellants during the year 1944 should be included in its Utah Mining Occupation Tax base as part of "the gross amount received

for or the gross value of metalliferous ore sold." (§80-5-66, U.C.A. 1943.)

1. Appellant's Operations.

Appellant owns and operates various mining properties including the well-known Utah Copper Mine at Bingham Canyon, Utah; from the mine its ores are transported to its mills at Magna and Arthur, Salt Lake County, Utah; thence its mill-concentrates are smelted in Utah and elsewhere and then refined on a contract or toll basis by various independent smelting and refining companies; and finally the end-product, appellant's refined copper, is eventually sold. (R. 16-18.) The gross proceeds from these bona fide contracts of sale have been duly reported to the State Tax Commission as required by law, and the statutory mining occupation or severance tax has been paid thereon. (R. 23-4.)

2. The Deficiency Assessment.

During the year 1944 appellant received from the Federal Government subsidy payments by authority of Congress (50 U.S.C. App. §902(e)) which authorized the Government to pay such subsidies "in such amounts and in such manner and upon such terms and conditions" as are determined to be necessary to obtain "maximum necessary production," here of copper. (R. 18, par. 5a.) The respondent Tax Commission, over appellant's objection, included these subsidies in appellant's occupation tax base, resulting in an additional tax of \$9,190.15. (R. 26, par. 13.)

3. Payment, and the Suit Below.

Appellant also paid this deficiency, but under protest (R. 26, par. 13), and then as provided by statute brought suit in the District Court of Salt Lake County to recover that amount. Respondent's demurrer to appellant's amended complaint (R. 16-30) was sustained (R. 34); appellant stood on its amended complaint and the action was dismissed (R. 38-40); and an appeal was duly taken to this court (R. 41.)

4. The Federal Subsidies.

Under the Federal Subsidy Statute above, the Administration in carrying out the will of Congress has wide authority to set not only the amounts to be paid, but also the terms, conditions and manner of payment; the test is the end of maximum necessary production. (R. 18-21.) The subsidies may or may not be tied in with price control. (R. 21, par. c.)

In this case, *which alone is here involved in contrast to others previously or now before this court*, the amounts, terms, conditions and manner of payment were prescribed by a letter-agreement of May 13, 1942. (R. 28-9.) Periodic affidavits to support appellant's performance of this agreement were subsequently filed in effect as payment vouchers, of which a typical sample is that dated January 4, 1943. (R. 30.)

From an examination of this agreement and the record it appears:

(a) Each of appellant's properties, of which the

Utah Copper Division is but one, was assigned a production quota. The quota for Utah Copper Division for the year in question was 46,000,000 pounds. (R. 7, par. 8a.)

(b) The Government agreed to pay appellant for production in excess of this quota a subsidy of 5c per pound. (R. 5, par. a; R. 28.)

(c) The basis for determining appellant's pounds of production was its monthly affidavits of "returnable" copper (R. 23, 29, 30), computed on 97% of the concentrate assay samples after milling at Magna and Arthur and without regard to subsequent smelting, refining or sale of the refined product. (R. 23, par. b.)

(d) The time of payment was in due course after submission of these monthly affidavits and without regard to subsequent smelting, refining or sale, the sale, however, generally occurring in the course of normal operations approximately three months after milling. (R. 23, par. b.)

II.

STATEMENT OF ERRORS

As indicated above, the single question presented for determination is whether or not the court below erred in dismissing appellant's amended complaint which, alleging the foregoing basic facts fully amplified, asserted that these particular federal subsidies for the year in question should have been excluded from the

appellant's mining occupation tax base.

III.

ARGUMENT

1. This court has not heretofore determined the particular question here presented.

The District Court below presumably relied upon Combined Metals Reduction Co. et al v. State Tax Commission, 176 P. 2d 614, to which cases appellant was not a party.

It is respectfully submitted that the facts here differ from the records in those cases and that accordingly the rule there announced does not extend to the instant case.

There, said the main opinion of the court at page 617, the records showed that the Government had fixed the terms, conditions, manner and time of lead-silver subsidy payments so that "the premium prices were paid only for such metals as were not only produced in accordance with the requirements of the plan, but which were also sold." Referring again to the records in those cases, the court said:

"It is self-evident that metals are not paid for under settlement contracts unless such metals are sold."

The basis for that statement apparently was that the records showed, at least in some of those cases, that the subsidies were paid at the time of and in connection with

the delivery and sale of the ores and concentrates to the various smelting companies; these smelting companies as buyers paid the mine operators, who were the protesting taxpayers, not only the fixed government prices as the purchase price for the ore under their settlement contracts, but also the federal subsidies; and the smelters acted as agents of the United States Government for this purpose.

Consequently three members of this court as then constituted could have some basis for saying that "in reality" what the sales to the smelters in those cases "yielded" was the combined total of the settlement contract purchase price and the federal subsidy. (Of course the statutory wording is not "yielded", as in the case of Montana, but "the amount of money or its equivalent *actually received*" under bona fide contracts of sale. § 80-5-66a.)

In sharp contrast the record here shows that "the amount of money or its equivalent actually received" by Kennecott under its bona fide sales was the proceeds from the sales prices for its refined copper; and the federal subsidy payments had no relationship to those sales. The federal bonuses were no different, for example, than might be a bonus from the State of Utah for maintaining steady employment rolls. Corporate income, perhaps, *but not money or its equivalent actually received under bona fide contracts of sale.*

2. The subsidies here paid were not "actually received under bona fide contracts of sale."

As we know, the Tax Commission itself in the years before the Combined Metals cases, the minority of this court, and the Supreme Court of Montana (Klies v. Linnane, 156 P. 2d 183) all differed with the majority opinion even as restricted to the Combined Metals case records.

The question then is if this court is now willing to extend the Combined Metals doctrine to the factual situation in this case where the record shows that the subsidies were *not* paid as a part of the sale and had no connection therewith. If the position of the Tax Commission is to be sustained, of course the effect will be to rewrite the statutes of this state — as they were enacted in 1937 long before World War II and the era of mining subsidies—to include in the severance tax base not only amounts received *from sales*, but “for mining production from any source”.

If federal bonuses are to be continued, as is urged by a substantial segment of our society, and the Government does not object to state taxation of its subsidy payments with its operating costs proportionately increased thereby, it might be a proper policy for the State of Utah to broaden its occupation tax base to include this source of revenue. But is such policy not for the Legislature of the State of Utah to adopt or reject?

Respectfully submitted,

C. C. PARSONS,
WM. M. McCREA,
A. D. MOFFAT,
CALVIN A. BEHLE,
Attorneys for Appellant.