1949

Kennecott Copper Corporation v. State Tax Commission : Brief of Appellee

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

1. The Tax Commission erred in refusing to follow the Utah Corporation Franchise Tax Act (§80-13-21) which

in the case of a taxpayer doing business in several states requires that the tax shall be based upon a return including the company's operations in those states and then allocating to Utah its proportion of that total income in accordance with the statutory formula.

This question is the familiar one of how a fair proportion of the income of the multi-state corporation shall be assigned or allocated for tax purposes to any particular state. Utah has met the question with the statutory mandate of § 80-13-21 which requires reporting of the taxpayer's total income, and then after segregating and providing for the treatment of rents, interest, dividends and capital gains, provides:

(6) If the bank or other corporation carries on any business outside this state, the said remainder may be divided into three equal parts:

(a) Of one third, such portion shall be attributed to business carried on with this state as shall be found by multiplying said third by a fraction whose numerator is the value of the corporation's tangible property situated within this state and whose denominator is the value of all the corporation's tangible property wherever situated.

(b) Of another third, such portion shall be attributed to business carried on within this state as shall be found by multiplying said third by a fraction whose numerator is the total amount expended by the corporation for wages, salaries, commissions or other compensation to its employees and assignable to this state and whose denominator is the total expenditures of the corporation for wages, salaries, commissions or other compensation to all of its employees.

(c) Of the remaining third, such portion shall be attributed to business carried on within this state as shall be found by multiplying said third by a fraction whose numerator is the amount of the corporation's gross receipts from business assignable to this state, and whose denominator is the amount of the corporation's gross receipts from all its business.

Subsection (8) then provides:

(8) If in the judgment of the tax commission the application of the foregoing rules does not allocate to this state the proportion of net income fairly and equitably attributable to this state, it may with such information as it may be able to obtain make such allocation as is fairly calculated to assign to this state the portion of net income reasonably attributable to the business done within this state and to avoid subjecting the taxpayer to double taxation.

As heretofore noted, the taxpayer and the Commission through 1941 by agreement had invoked an alternative method to the standard three-part "Massachusetts formula." Now, can the Commission ex-parte change those agreed principles and without further ado substitute its own new allocation method; or is not such action arbitrary, capricious and contrary to law unless and until subsection (8) is properly invoked?

The Commission once before tried just this, and in 1939 was told by this court that the legislature intended the Commission to depart from the formula only whenever the application of its provisions does not allocate to the state the business fairly attributable to it. California

Packing Corporation v. State Tax Commission, 97 Utah 367, 93 P. 2d 463.

Amplifying this statement, Justices Wolfe and McDonough noted:

* * * In determining the "portion of net income assignable to business done *within* this state" the commission "may" use the rules set out in the main opinion. This does not mean that the Commission may ignore the rules and choose its own. "May" has the meaning of "should," i.e., should follow the rules unless the rules fail to accomplish the overarching purpose as revealed by subsection (8). It is only in case an application of the rules as laid down fails to "allocate to this state the proportion of net income fairly and equitably attributable to this state" (subsection 8), or, on the other hand, where the rules would subject the taxpayer to so-called double taxation that the Commission may depart from them. This conclusion is fortified by the fact that the word "may" is used, together with the fact that the entire purpose of the rule is to arrive at a figure "fairly calculated to assign to this state the portion of the net income reasonably attributable to the business done within the state and to avoid subjecting the taxpayer to double taxation." * * * (p. 380)

Also:

* * * If a corporation had much property here as compared to its total property, but did little business here, it would on the first third of its total net income from sales, under subsection (6) (a), pay a disproportionate tax, but this might be compensated for under subsection (6) (c), depending on how subsection (6) (e) (1st) is interpreted. Usually the proportions of its

total wages and salaries attributable to Utah, calculated under subsection (6) (b), related to the total wages and salaries paid everywhere would represent a fair proportion of net income allocable to Utah, compared to total net income from all sales. And frequently the inequities which might ensue from the use of just one of the fractions defined by subsection (6) (a), (b) and (c), would be compensated by the use of the three fractions each based on a third of the total net income (excluding that set out in subsections (3) and (4). But here and there by the use of all these fractions a marked inequity might still remain either against the state or against the taxpayer, in which case subsection (8) comes into play. (p. 384.)

In that case in applying the law the court held that the taxpayer was "the usual and ordinary manufacturing company and there is shown no reason for departing from the regular method of computation to determine the amount of its franchise tax." So, here, the taxpayer is the usual and ordinary mining company; it has property in Utah and elsewhere; has employees here and elsewhere; and makes sales here and elsewhere.

The record is silent as to why the Commission ignored Kennecott's return, which after this controversy arose was based upon the statutory formula. It is apparent that the formula gives a less favorable result in total tax dollars due insofar as the State of Utah is concerned; but this court in its opinions has never sanctioned this end as justification for departure from legislative mandate. We would venture that the individual members of the Commission have never even looked at Exhibit 1 (R. 219-223), which was explained by the witness Par-

sons at page 51 of the record. On cross examination the Commission's counsel fluffed off the matter by suggesting that Kennecott had not first obtained "permission to change"; and Mr. Parsons admitted that he knew of no such request. (R. 55) However, to the extent such a request was necessary (we believe it not) counsel for plaintiff then made it clear that Kennecott did so submit such a request to the Commission. (R. 55) Furthermore this fact was apparent to any who had bothered to read Kennecott's letter of January 19, 1948 which accompanied the filing with the Commission of the amended return based upon the statutory formula. (Augmented Record, pp. 228-34.)

But without further ado the statute and return pursuant thereto were ignored by the Commission, which apparently by its decision in the main merely rubber-stamped the ingenious staff attempts designed to gain more revenue. In doing this the Commission acted regardless of the fact that the staff report disregarded prior commitments by the Commission, its own administrative practice over the years, and the statutes of the State of Utah as construed by this court.

2. The State Tax Commission erred in that it has failed to allow the taxpayer the required reasonable allowance for depletion.

a. Legislative History of Depletion.

An elementary principle peculiar to operations such as mining is that ore in place is a wasting asset. Like money in the bank, there is only so much; and when withdrawn pro tanto it is gone. Hence returns from mining

are "income" only to the extent that excluded from the gross is a proper allowance for depletion, and hence under both state and federal statutes based upon income there is afforded a deduction for depletion. 27 Am. Jur., "Income Taxes," §§ 122-125.

In *New Park Mining Company, et al v. State Tax Commission*, 196 P. 2d 485, this court said:

"* * * The theory upon which wasting assets corporations, such as mining companies, are allowed a deduction for depletion, is that the corporation franchise tax is a tax on income or upon the increment produced by capital, and not upon the capital itself. Hence, wasting assets corporations are allowed a deduction for depletion on the theory that the taxpayer thus recoups its capital investment. * * *"

The statutory wording requires the deduction of "a reasonable allowance for depletion *** *according to the peculiar conditions in each case*; such reasonable allowance in all cases to be made under rules and regulations to be prescribed by the tax commission." (§ 80-13-8(8), Utah Code Annotated 1943.)

(Parenthetically, it should here be noted that the Commission contends in effect that these words in the main are meaningless, since the taxpayer can utilize but two possible methods of depletion computation.)

This principle being clear, its administration becomes complicated only in the determination of what is the proper base for depletion "in each case." If excessive, the operator will not be paying his full income tax;

if deficient, the taxing authority will be attempting improperly to collect taxes based other than on income. It should be noted that in contrast with the Federal Government, the State Tax Commission has made no general rules and regulations covering depletion. (R. 104)

At first Congress established as the base for computing depletion the value of the particular mine (or its cost where that exceeded value) as of the effective date of the income tax laws, or its cost (today discovery value) at the time of acquisition if such occurred subsequent thereto. This method was likewise adopted by the Utah Legislature in 1931 (§ 80-13-8 (9a)), and is still the method prescribed by both state and federal governments for determining capital losses or gains in the event of sale of the mining property. (§§ 80-13-8 (9a), 80-13-14; Witness Earl, R. 59-60, 71-2.)

But mining ventures are both speculative and their value is often extremely difficult to determine as of any given date such as January 1, 1931. (R. 218) So Congress, after extensive studies of the problem, devised an alternative second method—15% of the gross proceeds, but not to exceed 50% of the net; and presently the taxpayer is permitted to make a choice each year of either method. (R. 73-4) This percentage method is not just an arbitrary allowance, but was adopted by Congress as fair to both the Government and the taxpayer. Based upon extensive studies and hearings, the precise percentage adopted was directly related to typical actually ascertained values. (R. 73-4) These studies indicated that the metal mining industry received in depletion allowances based upon cost-or-value an average deduction equiva-

lent to about 17% of their gross sales, reported the Joint Congressional Committee on Internal Revenue Taxation, p. 68, Vol. I, Part 8, submitted to Congress September 19, 1929. The Committee therefore recommended:

“From the study of this subject it is believed that 15 per cent of the gross sales value with a 50 per cent limitation to net income, would be a reasonable rate to allow the metal-mining industry for the future. This reduction by 2 per cent of the actual figures shown in the summary is thought advisable to offset the continuing effect of the percentage depletion method.

“The 15 per cent depletion allowance on gross sales is equivalent to a theoretical deduction of 30 per cent on net income. In actual operations the 30 per cent on net may vary 15 per cent above or below this figure, depending on the profits made by the particular operation.”

As the United States was amending its laws to carry into effect these committee recommendations, Utah in 1931 was adopting its own state corporation franchise tax as the result of the Professor Lutz tax studies under the Dern administration. A percentage method was likewise included as an alternative to value by § 80-13-8 (9) (b), but was set at 33 1-3 per cent of the “net income from the property *** computed without allowance for depletion.” After once making an election of method, however, the taxpayer cannot subsequently change without the Tax Commission’s consent.

b. History in Kennecott’s Case.

Kennecott (we include its predecessor) in 1931 made the election required by the new Utah statute. It accepted

the percentage method which it has consistently followed until the instant controversy. (R. 104) When in 1932 Kennecott, as well as other Utah mines, elected to invoke the state percentage method, it is important to note that the Tax Commission's initial return forms permitted, and those concerned invariably interpreted the statute to provide for: (1) no allocation of income from the mining property to "mining"; and (2), no prior deduction of federal taxes. (R. 106, 62). Kennecott, as well as others, filed its returns on this basis and these returns were accepted by the Commission from 1931 and for many years subsequent thereto. (R. 108)

In 1943, however, when the federal tax had become a most substantial factor, the Commission reviewed its practice; determined that the terms of the statutes required federal taxes to be first deducted before computing depletion if the percentage method were to be invoked; amended its return forms to so provide (Stip. III (B), R. 108); and successfully sustained this position in 1948 in the *New Park Mining Company et al.* cases *supra*. (R. 109) The court in that opinion, however, noted that the taxpayers there had elected to compute depletion under the percentage method; and the brief of the Commission in those cases constantly reiterated that the plaintiffs had not sought permission to change to a method other than Utah's percentage formula. In this connection, on March 14, 1944 the Commission had written:

"Please be advised that the Tax Commission has denied the request of the Utah Mining Congress for a change in the method of comput-

ing depletion. The Commission feels that the law makes it mandatory to deduct federal taxes before computing depletion.

“However, the Commission would be very sympathetic to a request for a change from the percentage depletion method to the cost method in determining depletion.”

(Ex. 5; R. 227.)

In the case now before the court Kennecott sought to make just such a change. (Ex. 3; R. 225.) But the effect of the decision was to deny that request. No reason is assigned for this action, which plaintiff attacks as arbitrary, capricious and contrary to law.

This request was in the nature of a third choice or preference, since the taxpayer primarily requested and still suggests as the fairest and most practical method the use of the Federal percentage method, to be available of course to all mines. Mr. Earl described the history and advantages in detail of that method and recommended that it be followed by the Commission. (R. 77) But the Commission apparently is of the opinion that Mr. Earl's remarks and Kennecott's request in this respect should be addressed to the legislature; i.e., in Utah, depletion under the law as it stands must be based upon one of only two alternatives. (R. 87)

Thus, also, the point is here presented as to whether or not this restrictive construction is correct. If it is, the words “according to the peculiar conditions in each case” are useless, as also is the standard of “a reasonable allowance” applied to the facts of this case.

The defendant by its decision reduced still further the proposed allowance of \$6,455,813.78 and determined that the allowance for depletion in this case should be \$6,089,670.26 (Schedule 8, R. 27), the gross Utah Copper Division income for that year being \$85,513,885.12. (Schedule 11, R. 31.) This figure is roughly 50 per cent of the allowance computed under any of the following recognized methods for determining a "reasonable allowance":

No. 1—Federal value method.....	\$12,438,135.57
No. 2—Federal percentage method.....	\$10,650,822.81
No. 3—Utah value method.....	\$14,007,442.00
No. 4—Utah percentage method (before Commission's changes in interpretation).....	\$12,822,347.09
(Utah as allowed.....)	\$6,089,670.26)

(Ex. 3; R. 255.)

The witness Geo. C. Earl, plaintiff's Chief Engineer, is a man of extensive training and practical experience. He is intimately familiar with mining properties and particularly the mine in question, and an expert in the field of mine valuation. (R. 57, et seq.) Neither his qualifications nor the engineering determinations of value (or for that matter the percentage calculations) are in dispute. He expressed the opinion that any of the above four methods applied to the peculiar circumstances of this case would afford a reasonable allowance for depletion within the permissive limits of administrative judgment (R. 74); that a variation in the application of

these methods of from ten to fourteen million dollars was within the limits of judgment (R. 75); but that the diminution of the depletion allowance to the six million dollar figure used by the Commission, or less than fifty per cent, was "wholly unreasonable" and had "absolutely no relationship" to the actual operations and a fair allowance. (R. 76.)

Q. Now, Mr. Earl, do you recognize that a variation between some of these methods from Ten Million to Fourteen Million is within the limitations of judgment? This is correct, isn't it?

A. Yes, Sir.

Q. But with the diminution of that allowance to Six Million or less than 50% is, in your opinion, unreasonable?

A. Wholly unreasonable.

Q. And has no relationship to the fact of the actual operation out there as you know it to be?

A. It has absolutely no relationship.
(Tr. 37-8.)

Plaintiff's position accordingly is that this record shows an arbitrary and capricious attitude on the part of the Commission, resulting in denial to plaintiff of the required statutory deduction of a reasonable allowance for depletion. The commission should have granted the request of Kennecott to compute the allowance either and preferably on the federal percentage basis, or on the Utah value-of-January 1, 1931 method under the circumstances. It is, we submit, evident that the Commission's

staff's objective was to apply mathematics and to interpret the law to produce the lowest possible result in dollars assignable to this deduction, rather than to allow a reasonable amount. (R. 92)

(MR ALLISON):

A. I don't feel in a position to express an opinion as to the reasonableness of this or any other depletion allowance. In our determination we have attempted to apply the statutory requirements for the depletion allowance, and we haven't, as Auditors, concerned ourselves with the reasonableness of the result obtained.

As will be noted from the rather brief record herein, the answer to these charges is largely silence. However, there did occur staff attempts to justify their action in that it was shown that from 1931 through 1941 the Commission had allowed \$52,240,744.01 in depletion (R. 94) on the taxpayer's own 1931 base of but \$11,419,540.00. (R. 83, 95) The latter was a hearsay figure at the time it was first utilized, confusing Commissioner Hammond, who said (R. 84): "How can you say that for one year the six million dollar charge for depletion is unreasonable when that is more than half the amount of the fair value of the property as reported by the Company***?"

Mr. Earl replied (R. 84-5):

The figure to which you refer, Mr. Hammond, I am not at all familiar with it. I do not know the basis upon which it was reported, or anything else, and I cannot answer that question, but I do

know this, that the basis set out in your statute is the fair market value of that mine as of that date. There (that) would be hundreds of millions of dollars, and that is what we are concerned with on depletion, regardless of any other figures. Your statute says it shall be the fair market value of the property as of that date. Now, the rules for determining the fair market value of a mine have long been established. They have been recognized by the government, by purchasers of property, and people who have properties for sale. And the only thing about it, it is not subject to an exact determination because judgment has to enter into the factors used. Now, I say I don't know what that figure (the hearsay figure) is; I don't know the basis for reporting it. Investment and market value as of a date have no relationship whatever.

COM. HAMMOND: It just occurred to me it was necessary to have some explanation of that great discrepancy in view of the fact that I think we generally agree that the purpose of allowing a deduction from a gross in arriving at the net income of a mine is to look for the return of capital, and that here, this report seems to have two figures; One of them Eleven Million Dollars plus as a fair value of the mine, and another figure, Eight Million Dollars plus as the book value of the mine. Now, those figures as I understand it haven't yet been presented here, and I don't know just how sound the basis is upon which I am making that inquiry, but the figures seem to

be so far apart it seems to me you could make some explanation that would in some way justify your conclusions that the Six Million Dollar figure wasn't reasonable.

* * * * *

The next day (reporter not present) it developed that the figure in doubt was based upon the net proceeds mine valuation for the depression year in question (Ex. 6, Schedule "H", Items (1 and 6, R. 217); and thus, as stated by Mr. Earl, it was without relationship to the different statutory basis for depletion to be allowed for income tax purposes.

Here we can only speculate as to what was the true basis for the decision in this case which without explanation sustained the depletion but at a figure reduced even below that made before the hearing. It is appreciated keenly that in this instance the latitude of the Commission is extensive, and that the burden is upon Kennecott to persuade this court that the action taken was an abuse of discretion. *Chicago & N. W. R. Co. v. Commissioner of Internal Revenue*, 114 F. 2d 882.

But not only is the record barren of anything material and relevant other than Mr. Earl's undisputed testimony that the allowance was below the limits of judgment; affirmatively it is shown that the amount allowed is only about 50% of what would be "reasonable" under both of the Federal methods here applicable, the Utah cost-or-value method and the Utah percentage method as previously construed.

Further, an examination of the statutes and methods of other states reveals support for Kennecott's position. For example, the following states directly tie their depletion computation to the optional federal methods:

California—Sec. 8g, Bank & Corporation, Act of 1945

Connecticut—Sec. 419c, Supp., Conn. Gen. Statutes 1930

Idaho—Sec. 61-2407 (c-1), Idaho Code Ann. 1932

Montana—Sec. 2297 (Third), Mont. Rev. Statutes 1935

Oklahoma—Sec. 880 (g), 68 Okla. Statutes 1941

Oregon—Sec. 110-1508 (g), Oregon Comp. Laws Ann.

Vermont—Sec. 890, Vermont Public Laws 1933

Three states have accomplished the same result, since in Tennessee, Pennsylvania and Rhode Island the entire law is based upon the federal tax. And the following tie in to the federal method by regulation:

Georgia—Sec. 92-3109, Georgia Code 1933

Kansas—Sec. 79-3206 (11) Gen. Stat. Kans. 1953,
Reg. 54

Louisiana—Sec. 8587.9 (m) La. Gen. Stat. 1939,
Reg. 96

Maryland—Sec. 224(j-1) Ann. Code 1939, Reg. 4

Five additional states have delegated plenary regulatory powers to the administering agencies: Arizona, Minnesota, Missouri, New Mexico and North Carolina.

Eight appear to tie depletion into cost-or-value alone; two apparently do not recognize the depletion deduction; and the remaining eighteen do not appear to have a comparable tax.

Thus, we submit, we find support in the policies and practices of other states to a most substantial degree that:

a. The Utah Commission has failed to follow the legislative mandate to allow reasonable depletion in this case.

b. The Utah statutes intend to delegate to the Commission wide latitude by regulation applicable to all, to invoke *any* sound method whereby to compute that reasonable allowance. The Commission is not hamstrung between an unreasonable percentage formula, and a difficult single alternative.

c. The method—federal percentage—is reasonable, practical, simple, fair and recognized as sound.

d. In any event, Kennecott should be afforded the alternative of utilizing the Utah cost-or-value method of January 1, 1931.

Plaintiff suggests that subsections 8 and 9 of Sec. 80-13-8 are ambiguous and conflicting. Either alone would present a clear legislative policy. Together, the Commission's view would nullify subsection 8 leaving 9 alone. Plaintiff's view would give heed to the rule of construction "in pari materia" (50 Am. Jur. 342 et

seq., *Norville v. State Tax Commission*, 98 U. 170, 97 P. 2d 937.) and find the legislative intent to be to give effect to both. That is, the key criterion is a "reasonable allowance" under subsection 8; but two possible methods are then authorized as aids by subsection 9, without restricting the determination of the allowance to only those methods and thus preventing the Commission from utilizing modern improvements in computation. Either that was the legislative intent, or there has been set up a peculiar statute with less latitude than in practically every other state which has considered the problem; and as noted, subsection 8 might just as well have been omitted.

3. The Commission has misinterpreted the Utah statutes establishing the percentage formula for determining depletion.

Assuming for the purpose of argument that the defendant Commission acted within its prerogatives in denying plaintiff's request to change over to either the Utah value method or the federal percentage method; that is, that plaintiff is forced to remain within the percentage method straight jacket to which it submitted under administrative representations which turned out to be illusory. (R. 62)

We concede that under the New Park decision *supra* federal taxes must first be deducted in determining depletion when this method is invoked. But plaintiff submits that in making an allocation of the income from the property to various steps such as "mining," the Commission has misconstrued and therefore has violated the law.

The percentage method statute provides that the allowance for depletion shall be one-third of the net income "from the property." Plaintiff contends that all of its income from Utah Copper Division is from the property; namely, the Bingham Canyon mine.

This court noted at the end of the New Park decision that when § 80-13-8 (9b) qualified the words "net income" with the words "from the property," the legislative purpose was to prevent a wasting assets corporation from taking a deduction for depletion "from all income, from whatever source derived." It will be noted here that Schedules 7 and 12 properly excluded from the base to which the percentage was applied *all income other than from the Bingham Canyon mine*.

a. In the first place, the Commission's contention is here directly in the teeth of its own administrative interpretation of the Act from 1931 to date. It has never heretofore attempted to apply this novel accounting invention either as to Kennecott *or any other Utah mine*. (R. 106)

As noted on page 6 of the Agreed Record, the Commission's instructions with respect to depletion were not amended in this respect *until* 1943, which for the first time brought into the picture the requirement of allocating income to sources other than "mineral extraction." (R. 107)

b. Further, the federal statute which was originally the model for Utah's provisions, even as amended to define and delimit "from the property," has not been construed to require such an allocation. With respect to the

specific Kennecott properties here involved the federal counterpart has been given the same construction heretofore applied by the Utah Commission from 1916 to date. (Mr. Earl's testimony, R. 68-70.)

c. Finally, the accounting invention (Ex. 4, R. 226) is an admittedly self-proving formula. (R. 91,70)

The formula reads as follows:

$$D^2 + D \frac{(2TC + TNI)}{3} - \frac{TNI \cdot MC}{3} = 0$$

which its inventor, Mr. Allison, on page 91 of the record said was a quadratic equation which determined depletion by the particular formula "because the depletion itself allowable under the statute depends upon the amount of depletion allowable." Mr. Earl pointed out that "I was taught very early in my mathematics that a formula which defined anything in terms of itself should not be used. Now, this formula does that very thing***." (R. 70)

* * * *

It is respectfully submitted that here again is an illustration where the Commission is arrogating unto itself the power arbitrarily to create and apply mathematical formulae to the sole end that in the particular case a higher tax results. Only the Commission's accountants could conceive that when the legislature in plain words allowed depletion for the average mine operator, self-proving quadratic equations were contemplated.

In considering the words "gross income from the property" as used in the Federal statute, the United

States Supreme Court has said that "the term should be taken in its natural sense." Further: "Gross income from time to time may be more or less than market value according to the bearing of particular contracts. *We do not think that we are at liberty to construct a theoretical gross income by recourse to the expense of production operations.*"

Helvering v. Mountain Producers Corp., 303 U. S. 276, 82 L. ed. 907, 58 S. Ct. 623.

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